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104.  The false statement of the cashmere content of the three Cashmerino yarns at issue is material to
the qualities and characteristics of each product and to the wholesale and retail pricing of the same and has
influenced both commercial and consumer purchasing decisions.
105.  Defendant caused the three falsely advertised handknitting products at issue to be shipped in
interstate commerce from Defendant’s New York warehouse to Plaintiff’s retail store in Philadelphia, PA.
106.  Plaintiff’s commercial interests have been injured by Defendant having supplied the three falsely
advertised handknitting products, including but not limited to :
a.) not receiving a product made of the specific qualities and characteristics advertised;
b.) being forced to incur various extraordinary expenses, which otherwise, in the ordinary
course of Plaintiff’s business, would not have been expended, to:
L determine a retailer’s responsibilities and potential liabilities for having, however
inadvertently, sold consumers improperly labeled wool products;
ii. determine the availability and reliability of resources for analyzing fiber content
in handknitting yarns;
1ii determine whether the three products at issue are spun of the labeled constituent
fibers ( primary and secondary testing );
v. because of the circumstances of this case, to obtain a fiber analysis of another
six cashmere content yarns inventoried by Plaintiff;
V. because of the circumstances of this case, to obtain a fiber analysis of another
cashmere content yarn identified by Plaintiff as a suitable replacement product;
vi. expend time, energy and money in developing Guaranties of Compliance to be
completed by all suppliers of wool products;
vil. being forced to devote considerable time and resources to respond to trade and
consumer inquiries concerning the cashmere content of yarns falsely advertised
by defendant;

ix. research and develop an appropriate corrective response to Defendant having
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f.)

g)

h.)

L)

)

k.)

supplied Plaintiff — since 2001 - with falsely advertised yarns so as to preserve
Plaintiff’s goodwill among consumers of handknitting yarns, employing services
of legal, marketing and public relations professionals;
X. implementing a recall of the non-merchantable products;
xi. storing the non-merchantable products off-site - to prevent any inadvertent sale
of the falsely labeled product to consumers until resolution of this matter;
xii. loss of interest on the payments made for the mis-warranted product and
payments made to correct the sale of the mis-warranted products;
cost paid for the literally falsely advertised products;
loss of primary profits expected from the resale of products as advertised by defendant;
loss of consumer trade since implementation of the recall of literally falsely advertised
products;
rendering The Knit With subject to enforcement actions by the Pennsylvania Attorney
General and the Federal Trade Commission for sale of improperly labeled wool products
— for which no cognizable defense is available;
exposing The Knit With to consumer lawsuits — for which no defense is available;
tarnishing The Knit With’s goodwill among handknitting consumers developed during 35
years of honest and fair dealing in wool products;
tarnishing The Knit With’s tradename and reputation among consumers of handknitting
yarns by ascribing a false and deceptive motivation to Plaintiff’s good faith actions to
correct the problem foisted upon Plaintiff by Defendants;
emotional distress suffered by the equitable owner of The Knit With caused by the specter
of the loss of her business caused by Defendants having supplied improperly labeled and
falsely advertised wool products;
requiring Plaintiff to secure loans and/or cash contributions to assure Plaintiff’s liquidity;

such other damages as may be adduced at trial.
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107.  The harms resulting to Plaintiff from Defendant having falsely advertised goods in interstate
commerce entitles Plaintiff to the full measure of statutory damages including but not limited to

recovery of actual damages and litigation costs; since Defendant’s conduct — especially that since July,
2006 — is so egregious, an award of enhanced damages up to the statutory maximum of trebled actual
damages is appropriate. See, 15 U.S.C. §1117.

108. Defendant’s deliberate and explicit false advertising of the Cashmerino yarns at issue, especially
in the context of Defendant’s repeated avowals the products have always been spun with cashmere and the
absence of any corroborative testing results prior to July, 2006 and Defendant’s other deceptive acts since
July, 2006 qualifies this matter as exceptional entitling Plaintiff to attorney’s fees incurred in litigation.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant, Knitting Fever, Inc. and the award of the
full measure of damages available pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 which measure of damages exceeds the
compulsory arbitration limit, for having falsely advertised in interstate commerce, and literally so, goods

distributed in interstate commerce much to the detriment of Plaintiff’s commercial interests.

COUNT FOUR:

Injury to Business and Property Pursuant to
RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATION ACT
( The Knit With vs. Sion Elalouf individually )

109.  Plaintiff incorporates hereby 94 1 through 3, Y 7 and 9 12 through 82 as if the same were set forth
fully and at length below.

110. Pursuant to § 1964(c) of the RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT, which
authorizes a civil action by any person, as that term is defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1961, whose business or
property has been injured by reason of a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962, Plaintiff brings Count IV against
Defendant Sion Elalouf.

111. Any person employed by or associated with an enterprise who conducts or participates, directly or
indirectly, in the conduct of an enterprise’s affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity violates 18

U.S.C. § 1962(c).
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112, Plaintiff believes and avers that Knitting Fever, Inc., a legal entity, is an enterprise the activities of

which affect interstate or foreign commerce, and that Sion Elalouf is a person, employed by or associated

with and who conducts the affairs of KFI as the terms ‘enterprise’ and ‘person’ are defined in 18 U.S.C. §

1961. See, Exhibit “ 2 .

113. After 1998, Mr. Elalouf has conducted KFI’s affairs through a pattern of racketeering activities as

specified by 18 U.S.C. § 1961; this pattern of racketeering activity consists of at least two racketeering

acts, specifically:

a.)

Mail Fraud:

1)

2.)

4.)

The ‘cashmere caper’ alleged in 9 36 and its attempted cover-up alleged in 9 60 is
incorporated herein as if fully set forth at length and in detail below.
Mr. Elalouf participated in this scheme knowing, or in reckless disregard of, the
true fiber content of the Cashmerino yarmns distributed by KFI to Plaintiff from
2001 and through 2005;
In furtherance of this scheme, at different and various times in the duration of
this scheme, Mr. Elalouf caused to be placed with, for delivery by, the US Mail
or commercial interstate carrier various documents wherein the fiber content of
the three cashmerino yarns at issue was materially misstated, specifically:
(A.) The Debbie Bliss Yarn Collection Catalogue of Shadecards
I On a date and under circumstances both more particularly known
to Mr. Elalouf but after June, 2001, Mr. Elalouf caused UPS, an
commercial interstate carrier to deliver to Plaintiff a shadecard
for the yarn known as Cashmerino Aran;
i, The shadecard for the Cashmerino Aran, delivered as alleged,
represents the fiber content of that yarn to be “55% Merino wool,
33% Microfibre and 12% Cashmere”;

il. The purported fiber content of the Cashmerino Aran, as disclosed
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(B.)

(C.)

iv.

on the shadecard delivered as alleged, is a material statement of
the qualities and characteristics of that yarn;

Two rounds of expert fiber analyses conducted from July through
August, 2006 indicate the purported fiber content of the yarn in
question is materially misstated in that the yarn is spun without

any cashmere at all ( 0% cashmere ).

The Knitting Fever Price / Product List Effective April 15, 2002

I

il.

iti.

iv.

L.

On a date and under circumstances more particularly known to
Mr. Elalouf but before April 15, 2002, Mr. Elalouf caused the
United States Mail to deliver to Plaintiff a Price List for yarn
products available from KFI, see, Exhibit “ 7 ”;

At page 5 of the April 15, 2002 Price List, delivered as alleged,
the fiber content of the three yarns at issue is stated as spun of

of “55% Merino wool, 33% Microfibre and 12% Cashmere”;
The fiber content of the three yarns at issue, as stated in the Price
List delivered as alleged is a material statement of the qualities
and characteristics of the three yarns in question;

Two rounds of expert fiber analyses conducted from July through
September, 2006 indicate the purported fiber content of the three
yarns at issue, as stated in the Price List dated April 15, 2002 and
delivered as alleged, is materially misstated — each yarn is spun
without any cashmere ( 0% cashmere ), see, Exhibits “ 97, “ 10 »,

“11 7, and “ 15 ™.

The July 20, 2006 Letter to the Trade of Sion Elalouf

On July 20, 2006, under circumstances more particularly known

to Mr. Elalouf, he caused the United States Mail to deliver to as
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ii.

many as 2,000 specialty yarn shops, including Plaintiff, a general

letter, ostensibly supported by four reports of fiber analyses in an

attempt to squelch a rumor circulating within the trade that the

Debbie Bliss Cashmerino yarns are not spun with cashmere; see,

Exhibit “ 14 7,

The July 20 letter, delivered as alleged, contains numerous

material misleading statements as well as misstatements of fact,

including the statements that:

(a.)

(b.)

(c.)

(d.)

a disgruntled competitor ‘maliciously publish[ed] false
and defamatory statements that ... Cashmerino ... does
not contain cashmere’ — when the report based upon
independent, objective and generally accepted testing
methods determined the cashmere content of the Debbie
Bliss Cashmerino yarn tested to be 0%;

the “Debbie Bliss’s Cashmerino yarn contains cashmere”
— materially false in two ways: tested samples drawn
from retail inventories uniformly indicate 0% cashmere
and KFI has yet to produce any test reporting contrary
findings based on samples drawn from stocks in any
retail store as of June 10, 2006;

“TFT Limited ... confirmed all six ...Cashmerino samples
... contain cashmere” — when TFT’s test report could
state no more than “a quantity of cashmere” was found
and TFT did not say the quantity was the labeled 12%;
“it is difficult to test accurately for cashmere content” —

materially false because, while fiber content analysis is
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(f.)

(g)

a specialized scientific endeavor, the fiber analysis field
has developed generally accepted procedures to assure
the accuracy and uniformity of testing results;
“when one uses a projection microscope to examine ...
cashmere ...blended with extrafine merino wool — both
of which have the same micron of approximately 18/19
— there will be some fibers ... identified as wool, some as
cashmere and others that are indeterminate” — materially
false as expert fiber analysis distinguishes fiber types by
scale patterns (analogous to fingerprints) and not micron
count which measures only fiber diameter and because
micron count is non-determinative of the fiber’s species
of origin.
“ Stated simply, it is virtually impossible to differentiate
between Iranian cashmere and extrafine merino wool [as]
the two fibers have virtually the same characteristics” —
materially and recklessly false because the fiber analysis
field functions for the very purpose of identifying the
animal species which produced the fiber;
“We are sure that, while random tests of [ 25 named ]...
blends may not always identify the cashmere content, our
competitors’ products in fact contain the requisite amount
of cashmere” — recklessly misleading in two ways:
(1.) it questions the fiber content of competitors’
yarns without any fact to support the charge, and

(2.) itequates presence of ‘the requisite amount of
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(D.)

cashmere’ in competitors’ products with presence
of ‘the requisite cashmere’ in the KFI-distributed
cashmerino yarns.

(h.) and finally, that “we are anxious to furnish . . . whatever
information you need to put your mind at ease about this
matter” — materially and recklessly misleading because
when Plaintiff requested a Guaranty of Compliance,

Mr. Elalouf did not do so and has yet to so do.

The September 26, 2006 Debbie Bliss Letter to the Trade

I

ii.

iii.

On September 26, 2006, and under circumstances known more
particularly to Mr. Elalouf, he caused the United States Mail to
deliver to as many as 2,000 specialty yarn stores including
Plaintiff a general letter — ostensibly authored by Debbie Bliss
wherein Mrs. Bliss expresses her sadness and distress that the
fiber content of yarns labeled with her name would be called in
question, see, Exhibit “ 16 ”;

the letter defines Mrs. Bliss’ role in producing yarns labeled with
her name as “a huge responsibility to maintain the very highest
standards and ensure the quality of the products”~ a material and
reckless misstatement as it implies Mrs. Bliss acts to fulfill this
duty;

The same letter claims Designer Yarns “have initiated the most
stringent state of the art tests, including DNA, every one of which
confirms the presence of cashmere in the yarn” — a materially and
recklessly misleading statement in two respects:

(1.) DNA testing, presently, can only determine the genus of
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animal which produced the fiber spun into yarn ( e.g.,
goat as opposed to sheep ) and can not distinguish the
specific species producing the fiber ( e.g., angora goat
as opposed to cashmere goat ) — a fact known, or which
should be known, to Mrs. Bliss and Mr. Elalouf;

(2.) the results of testing ‘initiated’ by Designer Yarns on
samples not drawn from retailers’ shelves is irrelevant to
the fiber content of yarns already sold to retailers for
resale to consumers, a fact known, or which should be
known, to Mrs. Bliss and Mr. Elalouf.

5.) Any non-specified particular facts, if legally relevant, are uniquely known only to
Mr. Elalouf a;1d require Plaintiff’s development through discovery.
6.) The conduct described in § 113(a)(1 through 4) violates 18 U.S.C. § 1341.
7.) A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341 is a specified racketeering act pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1961.
b.) Wire Fraud:
1.) The July 20 Letter of Sion Elalouf to the Yarn Trade
(A.) OnlJuly 20, 2006, to further the scheme alleged in § 36 and its attempted
cover-up alleged in § 60, Mr. Elalouf caused the use of interstate wires to
transmit his three page letter, discussed in 9 113(a.)(4)(c) above, to yarn
retailers for which KFI possessed e-mail addresses, including Plaintiff;
(B.) By reference to the specific allegations of the false and/or recklessly
misleading statements contained in that letter, more specifically set forth
in § 113(a.)(4)(c) and subparagraphs thereto, Plaintiff incorporates the
same as if set forth fully and at length below.

2.) The July 20 Knitter’s Review Post of Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr.
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(A.) OnJuly 20, 2006, to further the scheme alleged in § 36, Mr. Elalouf
directed and caused Mr. Denecke to use interstate wires to publish the
three page Elalouf letter, discussed in § 113(a.)(4)(c) above, to untold
thousands of consumers who are readers of the Knitters’ Review Forum;

(B.) By reference to the specific allegations of the false and/or misleading
statements of that letter, more specifically set forth in § 113(a.)(4)(c) and
subparagraphs thereto, Plaintiff incorporates herein the same as if set
forth fully and at length below.

3.) The October 19 Knitters Review Post ‘Recall Without Recollection’

(A.) On October 19, 2006 — in response to consumer ‘chatter’ about Plaintiff’s
recall of the three cashmerino yarns at issue — Mr. Elalouf directed and
caused Mr. Denecke to use interstate wires to transmit and publish in the
Knittter’s Review Forum, to untold thousands of knitting consumers, an »
open letter ( under Mr. Denecke’s name although apparently written by
Mr. Elalouf ) addressing Plaintiff’s consumer recall. See, Exhibit “ 18 ;

(B.) The Denecke letter, transmitted as alleged, makes multiple material
misstatements of fact including:

L “[T]here was never any reason for The Knit With to recall these
products in the first place” — materially false because, as known
to KF1 in advance of the recall, fiber analyses of Cashmerino
samples drawn from Plaintiff’s inventory show the products
supplied to Plaintiff contain a zero cashmere content rendering
such Cashmerino stocks unsalable as labeled;

it. Recent “[t]ests . .. performed for KFI ... confirm what KFI
has been saying all along - the products contain cashmere”

(emphasis in original ) — a materially false statement for two
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(C.)

ii.

iv.

reasons:

(1) none of the tests ‘performed for KFI* were performed on
samples drawn from Plaintiff’s inventory or from stocks
of any KFI-supplied retailer;

(2.) tests performed on product samples available only after
the absence of cashmere content was detected can hardly
confirm the presence of cashmere in stocks supplied to ‘
retailers by KFI before July, 2006 and as early as Fall,
2001.

“So KFI continues to stand behind the products, even issuing . . .

guarantees (sic) in the form prescribed by the FTC” — materially

false statement vis-a-vis Plaintiff because KFI refused to provide

Plaintiff a twice-requested Guaranty of Compliance;

Plaintiff’s recall is a purposeful “smear campaign targeting KFI’s

products” — materially false as KFI had notice the recalled yarns

in question were found, at great expense to Plaintiff, to not be
spun with the labeled quantity of cashmere and therefore should

never have been sold to consumers as labeled.

The October 19 Knitters Review post, transmitted as alleged, makes

numerous material misleading statements, in reckless disregard of the

truth, including the following statements:

L

Since 2002, KFI supplied Plaintiff for resale to consumers “a
grand total of 94 bags of products containing cashmere” — which
statement is materially misleading, in reckless disregard of the
truth, for two reasons:

(1.) the statement wholly ignore the 93 ‘bags of products
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[ supposedly ] containing cashmere’ supplied by KFI to
Plaintiff in 2001 when KFI introduced Cashmerino — a
fact certainly known to KFI;

(2.) the statement attempts to portray Plaintiff as being but
inconsequentially interested whether the Cashmerino
products are, or were ever, spun with a cashmere content
- despite Plaintiff having purchased for resale 185 bags
of the products at issue.

ii. Plaintiff’s recall was purposed in “getting a lot of free publicity”
~ a materially misleading statement in that it ignores the several
substantial reasons to recall the Cashmerino products, reasons
known to KFI in advance of the recall being publicly announced
and the recall was hardly free or without expense to Plaintiff.

iti. The recall is revenge for “KFI ... [having stopped] doing business
with The Knit With altogether” — materially misleading because
it does not provide the relevant facts and circumstances

culminating in the dictat of KFI's owner. See, ] 18-24.

4.) Any non-specified particular facts, if legally relevant, material to this allegation
are uniquely known only to Mr. Elalouf and require development in discovery.

5.) The conduct described in 9 113(b)(1 through 3) violates 18 U.S.C. § 1343.

6.) A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343 is legislatively specified as a racketeering act;
see, 18 U.S.C. § 1961.

Witness Tampering:

1.) In an official proceeding of the Eastern District of New York known as Knitting
Fever, Inc. v. Coats Holdings, Ltd., Mr. Elalouf corruptly, for evil and depraved

purposes, first failed to produce in discovery documents illicitly obtained by bribe
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and threat of Coats’ employee and following discovery of his corrupt conduct,
Mr. Elalouf tried to conceal, withhold and keep unavailable the same documents
in that proceeding with intent to impair the availability of the same documents so
as to influence or impede that official proceeding resulting in judicial conferences
conducted on October 3, 25 and 31, 2005. See, Knitting Fever, Inc. v. Coats
Holdings, Ltd.., (E.D. NY 05-CV-01065 ) documents 65 and 66. *

2.) Mr. Elalouf’s conduct resulting in the judicial conferences held on October 3, 25
and 31, 2005 was intended to, and indeed attempted to, obstruct, influence, or
impede that official proceeding.

3.) Mr. Elalouf’s conduct in tampering with the availability of documents resulting in
the judicial conferences conducted October 3, 25 gnd 31, 2005 did impede, if not
successfully influence, that judicial proceeding.

4.) The conduct described in § 113(c)(1 through 3) violates 18 U.S.C. § 1512(c).

5.) A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(c) is specified as racketeering activity by 18
U.S.C. § 1961.

d) Obstruction of Justice:

1.) In the proceeding known as Knitting Fever, Inc. v. Coats Holdings, Ltd. — begun
by Mr. Elalouf — on October 3, 25 and 31, 2005 proceedings were held about
Mr. Elalouf’s conduct, which conduct was, within metes and bounds, an endeavor
with the foreseeable, natural and probable effect to interfere with the due
administration of justice in that matter. See, Knitting Fever, Inc. v. Coats
Holdings, Ltd.., (E.D.NY 05-CV-01065 ), documents 65 and 66.

2.) Plaintiff believes and avers Mr. Elalouf’s conduct resulting in the proceedings

Despite the Coats Holdings matter being litigated under stipulation of confidentiality, documents
65 and 66 are publicly available as, apparently, counsel for Knitting Fever, Inc. failed to designate the sealing of the

transcripts of the court’s October 25 and 31 hearings.
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3.)

4.)

held on October 3, 25 and 31, 2005 had a nexus with a pending federal judicial
proceeding, specifically the Coats matter, that Mr. Elalouf had notice of that
proceeding and he attempted to act corruptly, with an evil or depraved motive and
intending to obstruct or interfere with the due administration of justice.

Plaintiff believes and therefore avers Mr. Elalouf’s conduct in the Coats litigation
as alleged in § 113(d)(1-2) contravenes 18 U.S.C. 1503(a).

A violation of 18 U.S.C. 1503(a) is, at 18 U.S.C. § 1961, a specified racketeering

act.

Hobbs Act

1.)

2.)

3.)

Beginning in 2004, Mr. Elalouf exerted influence to cause Coats’ employee to
part with property, specifically documents in the possession of Coats’ employee,
valuable to Mr. Elalouf in effecting the continuation of KFI as the exclusive
importer-distributor of certain Coats’ brands ( the GR&S yarns ).

In hearings conducted in the Coats Holdings matter, the Magistrate Judge heard

evidence that Mr. Elalouf procured these documents: |

(A.) inan attempt to exercise extra-contractual control over Coats’ decision to
continue the commercial relationship with Mr. Elalouf’s company;

(B.) by the later wrongful inducement of fear within Coats’ employee for the
loss of his job within the Coats organization;

The extortion and/or the attempted extortion of the Coats’ employee affects

interstate commerce in that :

(A.) KFI’s continuation as the exclusive importer of certain Coats’ brands is a
factor in the availability of such branded products for distribution to US
yarn retailers;

(B.) Mr. Elalouf personally traveled interstate to effect his extortion; and

(C.) the extortion attempted to interfere with Coats’ freedom to associate with
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f.)

other importers engaged in interstate commerce. See, Knitting Fever, Inc.
v. Coats Holdings, Ltd..( E.D. NY 05-CV-01065 ), docs. 65 and 66.
4.) The conduct of Mr. Elalouf, as alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(e)(1-3),

constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1951.

5.) A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1951 is, at 18 U.S.C. § 1961, legislatively specified as

a racketeering act.

Money Laundering:
1.) Monetary Transactions in Criminally Derived Property

(A.) Mr. Elalouf’s monetary transactions (deposits, transfers and withdrawals)
in the accounts identified in § 17 — if not opened to launder money have
nonetheless been used for that purpose — constitute monetary transactions
in criminally derived property affecting interstate commerce.

(B.) Monies deposited in the accounts identified in § 17 represent criminally
derived property as that term is defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1957.

(C.) Monies deposited in the accounts identified in 9 17 are criminally derived
property resulting from the proceeds of an unlawful activity as specified
in 18 U.S.C. § 1956 — specifically, the importation of goods contrary to
law ( see, WOOL PRODUCTS LABELING ACT of 1939 codified at 15 U.S.C.
§ 68 et seq. proscribing ‘introduction’ in US commerce of mis-labeled
wool products. ).

(D.) Since at least 2001, Mr. Elalouf’s monetary transactions in the banking
accounts identified in § 17 are in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1957.

(E.) At18U.S.C. 1961, a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1957 is specified as
racketeering activity.

2.) Transactions at Financial Institutions in Proceeds From Unlawful Activity

(A.) The financial transactions in the accounts identified in § 17, specifically
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(B.)

(C.)

(D.)

(E.)

the deposits made to those accounts, constitute proceeds from a form of
unlawful activity, as the term ‘unlawful activity’ is specified in 18 U.S.C.
§ 1956 — specifically, the sale of goods imported contrary to law ( see,
WOOL PRODUCTS LABELING ACT of 1939 codified at 15 U.S.C.§ 68 et
seq. proscribing ‘introduction’ in US commerce of mis-labeled wool
products. ).

The transactions in the accounts identified in § 17 were knowingly made
with an intent to promote the carrying on a specified unlawful activity.
Conducting transactions in the proceeds of unlawful activity is a violation

of 18 U.S.C. § 1956. °

Mr. Elalouf’s transactions in the accounts identified in 4 17 constitutes a
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956.

The violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, a specified

racketeering activity.

g.) Interstate Travel and Use of Interstate Facilities for Racketeering Purposes

1) Domestic Interstate Travel in Aid of Carrying-On Racketeering Activity

(A)

(B.)

Plaintiff believes and therefore avers Mr. Elalouf, in June, 2001 traveled
from his residence, then in Jericho, NY to Columbus, OH with intent to
promote, establish, manage or otherwise carry-on an unlawful activity
and thereafter, to further promote, establish, manage or carry-on that
unlawful activity, Mr. Elalouf used facilities of interstate commerce
specifically the United States Mails, to issue to Plaintiff Invoice No.
058185 dated October 25, 2001. See, Exhibit “ 6 .

Plaintiff believes and avers Mr. Elalouf’s conduct as alleged in the
foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(1)(A), constitutes a violation of 18

U.S.C. § 1952,

Page 44 of 60



Cas€&eR0B8aN804RINMBDOnrnaii3-l FRIedON2HE0 PRgsa460661

2.)

3.)

(€)

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering act.

Foreign Travel in Aid of Establishing Racketeering Activity

(A.)

(B.)

(€.)

Plaintiff believes that in or around July, 2000, Mr. Elalouf traveled to
Florence, Italy from his Jericho, NY residence with the intent to promote,
establish, carry-on or facilitate an unlawful activity and thereafter he used
interstate commerce facilities to promote, carry-on or facilitate that
unlawful activity, specifically the United States Mail to issue Plaintiff
Invoice No. 058185 dated October 25, 2001. See, Exhibit “6 ».

By information and belief, the conduct alleged in the foregoing
paragraph, § 113(g)(2)(A), constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952 is,at 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

Foreign Travel in Aid of Carrying-On Racketeering Activity

(A)

Plaintiff believes and avers that in July, 2006 — after a rumor began to
circulate in the US yarn trade concerning the zero cashmere content of the
Debbie Bliss Cashmerino yarns — Mr. Elalouf traveled to Florence, Italy
from his residence now in Sands Point, NY, with intent to promote,
manage, carry-on or facilitate unlawful activity ( specifically, to devise,
contrive and implement ‘damage control’ to ensure the continued
marketability of the Cashmerino products and the vitality of the Debbie
Bliss brand ) and thereafter, he used facilities of interstate commerce to
promote, manage or carry-on or facilitate the promotion, management or
carrying-on of an unlawful activity, specifically both the United States
Mail and the telephone network to issue to the US yarn trade and the

purchasing public a general letter dated July 20, 2006 contrived to quell
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4.)

5.)

(B.)

(C)

qualms about the cashmere content of the cashmerino yarns exclusively
imported and distributed by Mr. Elalouf.

By information and belief, the conduct as alleged in the foregoing
paragraph, § 113(g)(3)(A) constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952.
A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

Foreign Travel for Purpose of Extortion

(A.)

(B.)

(C)

By information and belief, Mr. Elalouf in September, 2004 traveled from
his Sands Point, NY residence to Belgium, to establish and facilitate the
extortion/black-mail of a Coats’ employee and thereafter used facilities
of interstate commerce, specifically the US Mails and telephone network
to carry-on that activity. See, Knitting Fever,Inc. v. Coats Holdings, Ltd..,
(E.D.NY 05-CV-01065 ), docs. 65 and 66.

The condL;ct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(4)(A) violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, a specified

racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A)

Plaintiff believes and therefore avers that Mr. Elalouf, in 2001 used the
facilities of interstate commerce, specifically the United States Mail, with
intent to manage or carry-on an unlawful activity when he caused
Invoices No. 0550347 dated September 17, 2001, No. 055616 dated
September 26, 2001 and No. 060706 dated November 19, 2001 be sent

to Plaintiff and thereafter used facilities in interstate commerce in cashing
Plaintiff’s checks in payment of the same invoices to manage and carry-on

an unlawful activity. See, Exhibit “ 6 .
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6.)

7.)

(B.) The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(5)(A), violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952,

(C.) A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a
racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A.) InOctober, 2001, Mr. Elalouf with intent to promote, manage, or carry-on
an unlawful activity used facilities of interstate commerce, specifically the
United States Mail, to issue Plaintiff Invoice No. 058185 dated October 25,
2001 and thereafter he used interstate commerce facilities to negotiate the
check issued in payment of that invoice to further promote, manage or
carry-on an unlawful activity. See, Exhibit “ 6 .

(B.) The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(6)(A), violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952,

(C.) Aviolation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a
racketeering act.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A.) Before April 15, 2002, Mr. Elalouf, with intent to promote, manage or
carry-on an unlawful activity used the United States Mail, a facility of
interstate commerce, to send to as many as 2,000 specialty yarn retailers
like Plaintiff a Price List and thereafter he used facilities of interstate
commerce, specifically the US Mail, to promote, manage and carry-on
an unlawful activity to send Plaintiff Invoice Nos. 186593 dated July 6,
2004 and 190113 dated July 29, 2004. See, Exhibit “ 6 ”.

(B.) The conduct as alleged in the foregoing paragraph, 9 113(g)(7)(A),
constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952.

(C.) Aviolation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a
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8.)

9.)

racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A)

(B.)

(C.)

On multiple dates between September 17, 2001 through July 29, 2004,
with intent to promote, manage and carry-on an unlawful activity, Mr.
Elalouf used facilities of interstate commerce, specifically a commercial
interstate carrier, to ship Plaintiff mis-labeled yarn products and thereafter
to manage and carry-on that unlawful activity, he used the United States
Mail, another facility of interstate commerce, to send Plaintiff invoices
for those same shipments. See, Exhibit ¢ 6 .

The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, 9 113(g)(8)(A), violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A.)

(B.)

(C.)

On multiple dates beginning September 17, 2001 through July 29, 2004,
with intent to promote, manage and carry-on an unlawful activity, Mr.
Elalouf used the United States Mail, a facility of interstate commerce, to
issue Plaintiff invoices for mis-labeled Cashmerino products and
thereafter to manage and carry-on that unlawful activity, he negotiated
Plaintiff’s checks in payment of those invoices through accounts held at
HSBC Bank USA also a facility of interstate commerce. See, Exhibit
“67; seealso, | 17.

The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(9)(A), violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, a specified

racketeering act.

Page 48 of 60



Caseang @-68ay8842R $1RB DOnoumer23-1 Fikid09D2/68 0 PRggd S0066 1

10.)

11.)

12.)

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A.)

(B.)
(C.)

With intent to manage or carry-on an unlawful activity, on July 7, 2006
Mr. Elalouf used the telephone system, a facility of interstate commerce,
to receive faxed fiber analyses of the Debbie Bliss Cashmerino Aran and
thereafter, to manage and carry-on an unlawful activity used a facility of
interstate commerce, specifically the United States Mail to send a three
page letter and copies of those same fiber analyses to yarn retailers. See,
Exhibit “ 14 ”,

The conduct alleged in § 113(g)(10)(A) violates 18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A)

(B.)

(C)

On July 20, 2006 Mr. Elalouf, with intent to promote, manage or carry-on
an unlawful activity caused use of a facility of interstate commerce, the
US Mail, to send a three page letter and four fiber analyses arguing the
Cashmerino product has always, since 2001, contained cashmere and
thereafter, to manage and carry-on an unlawful activity used the telephone
system, also a facility of interstate commerce to publish the same letter to
consumers via the Knitter’s Review Forum. See, Exhibit ©“ 14 .

The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(11)(A),
constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952.

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A.)

In September, 2006, Mr. Elalouf, with intent to promote, manage and

carry-on an unlawful activity, used facilities of interstate commerce,
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(B.)

(C.)

specifically the telephone system, to receive from Mrs. Bliss a draft of a
letter defending the claimed presence of cashmere in Cashmerino Aran
and thereafter, to promote, manage and carry-on an unlawful activity,
Mr. Elalouf used the US Mail to issue Mrs. Bliss’ letter to specialty
retailers of handknitting yarns. See, Exhibit “ 16 .

The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, § 113(g)(12)(A),
constitutes a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952,

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is, by 18 U.S.C. § 1961, specified as a

racketeering activity.

13.)  Use of Interstate Facilities in Aid of Racketeering Activity

(A)

(B.)

(C.)

In April, 2007, Mr. Elalouf, with intent to promote, manage and carry-on
an unlawful activity, used facilities of interstate commerce, specifically
the US Mail, to send retail yarn shops a Price List representing the fiber
content of the product Elsebeth Lavold Silky Wool to be 65% wool and
45% silk and thereafter, to manage and carry-on that unlawful activity, he
caused to be used the US Mail to issue a letter dated May 30, 2008
admitting the Silky Wool product, as distributed since April, 2007, is
mislabeled.

The conduct alleged in the foregoing paragraph, 4 113(g)(13)(A), violates
18 U.S.C. § 1952,

A violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 is a specified racketeering act.

114. The numerous racketeering activities particularized in § 113, all of which occurred after Congress’

enactment of the RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT, constitute a pattern of

racketeering activity beginning in at least 2000 and certainly by June, 2001and persisting through May,

2008 — which pattern is continuous and open and portends future acts of racketeering by Mr. Elalouf.

115. The relatedness of the racketeering activities particularized in § 113 is apparent by:
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a.) the distinguishing feature, that, in multiple circumstances of daily business, Mr. Elalouf
chooses illicit conduct rather than comport himself within the confines of legal behavior;

b.) such furtive and flagitious activities manifests a kingpin’s flagrant flouting of generally
accepted norms of good faith and fair dealing;

c.) the obstreperous acts were purposeful — to enrich Mr. Elalouf at the actual or likely
expense of others;

d.) the particularized acts demonstrate Mr. Elalouf’s goal to assert and exploit exclusive
personal control over both foreign sellers and domestic commercial buyers in transactions
involving handknitting yarns;

e.) such acts not personally performed by Mr. Elalouf were nonetheless committed pursuant
to his direction as the key person within a racketeering enterprise and in furtherance of the
enterprise’s affairs; and

f) the repeated commission of § 1961 violations in furtherance of an enterprise constitutes to
persons of ordinary intelligence a pattern of racketeering.

116. The activities particularized in 7 113 illustrate Mr. Elalouf’s regular way of conducting the affairs
of Knitting Fever, Inc. is, indeed, by continuously engaging in racketeering acts; KFI’s business, the
importation and wholesale distribution of handknitting products, involves business activities ordinarily
distinct from racketeering acts.

117. The pattern of continuous racketeering activity particularized in § 113 indicates Mr. Elalouf
conducts, operates or manages KFI as a racketeering enterprise in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c).

118. Plaintiff believes and therefore avers that KFI's business affects interstate and foreign commerce.
119. Plaintiff’s business has been injured by reason of Mr. Elalouf’s violation of § 1962(c) as alleged

in 19 110 through 118; more specifically, Plaintiff’s injury includes:

a.) being supplied multiple mis-labeled Cashmerino products;
b.) being supplied products which are not susceptible of honest resale;
b.) being supplied a product at a wholesale price grossly inflated from its actual value when
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compared to market rates for yarn products spun of 57% wool and 43% acrylic;
c.) by reference to 4 106, Plaintiff incorporates herein the specific forms of damage listed
in § 106 as if the same were fully set forth below ;
d.) such other damages as may be adduced at trial.
120.  The harms resulting to Plaintiff by reason of Defendant conducting or participating in the conduct
of KFI as a racketeering enterprise entitle Plaintiff, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), to recover the full
measure of statutory damages: threefold enhancement of damages, litigation costs and attorney’s fees.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment and the award of damages against Defendant Sion Elalouf for
having managed or operated Knitting Fever, Inc. as a racketeering enterprise which has injured Plaintiff’s
business and such other remedies as the Court may deem appropriate and just including but not limited to
prohibiting the Defendant from future participation in the importation, promotion, wholesale distribution

and sale of handknitting yarns.

COUNT FIVE :

Conspiracy to Cause Injury to Business and Property
Pursuant to RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATION ACT
( The Knit With vs. all Defendants except Knitting Fever, Inc. )

121. Plaintiff incorporates herein 9 1 through 3, and 5 through 82 as if the same were fully set forth at
length below.
122. The RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT, at 18 U.S.C.§ 1962(d), renders
any conspiracy to violate the remaining provisions of § 1962 unlawful.
123. At § 1964(c), RICO provides a cause of action for injury to business or property resulting from a
a person having, inter alia, conducted an enterprise affecting interstate commerce through a pattern of
racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c).
124, Plaintiff believes and avers the allegations made at Y 109 through 120 establish:

a.) Knitting Fever, Inc. is an enterprise the activities of which affect interstate commerce;

b.) Mr. Elalouf conducts KF1 as a racketeering enterprise in violation of 18U.S.C. § 1962(c),
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c.). Plaintiff’s business has been injured by the activities of that racketeering enterprise.

The Conspiracy to Cover-Up the Cashmerino Caper

125.  Beginning May 26, 2006 and on a date more specifically known to Defendants but certainly by
Saturday June 10, when the cashmere caper alleged in 9 36 began to unravel and the true Cashmerino fiber
content began to become known in the US yarn trade, Sion Elalouf and Designer Yarns agreed:

a.) upon an elaborate although unsophisticated cover-up scheme, as alleged in 9§ 60;

b.) to maintain the Cashmerinos were always spun of the requisite quantity of cashmere —
despite the decision made prior to June 9, 2001, as alleged in 4 36, to label the 0% version
of the Cashmerino product as spun of 12% cashmere;

c.) for the purpose and goal to enable the Defendants to insist that ‘all along’ since the 2001
introduction of the Cashmerinos, the yarns at issue have been spun of the requisite content
of cashmere — as Mr. Elalouf has since steadfastly insisted.

126. Designer Yarns, Ltd., between May 26, 2006 and certainly by June 20, 2006 and continuing for
months thereafter, in reckless disregard of the truth, conspired with Mr. Elalouf and participated in the
scheme described in § 60. See, 9 61 - 66.

127.  Filatura Pettinata V.V.G.,on or before June 20, 2006, in reckless disregard of the truth, knowingly
joined the conspiracy as alleged in 60 to facilitate the cover-up of the Elalouf-Designer decision to palm
off the 0% cashmere version for the Cashmerino spun of 12% cashmere, as alleged in q 36, by:

a.) prior to but certainly by June 20, 2006, providing Designer Yarns three small wraps of
yarn for fiber analysis subsequently performed by Julie Smith;

b.) shipping more than two weeks later and prior to July 7, 2006, sample balls of Cashmerino
Aran which Designer Yarns presented for expert fiber analysis performed by Mary Lunn;

c.) more than five weeks after Miss Smith made known her requirement that she randomly
select finished yarns for definitive fiber analysis purposes, shipping to Designer Yarns
quantities of finished yarn spun with cashmere for Miss Smith’s sampling on July 27,

d.) on or about July 7 and certainly by July 11, providing Mr. Elalouf :
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(A.) areport of fiber analysis dated January 09, 2006 performed by Primo Brachi for
an entity known as Marcopolo, SRL in Genoa, Italy on yarn composed of 55%
cashmere and 45% wool represented to be a fiber analysis of Cashmerino Aran,
which report certainly is not an analysis of Cashmerino Aran ( purportedly spun
of 55% wool, 33% microfiber and 12% cashmere ) — knowing Mr. Elalouf
would present the Brachi report to other interested parties for their reliance as to
the cashmere content of the Cashmerino Aran product, see, Exhibit “ 11” at pg. §;
(B.) anundated report of fiber analysis, titled Rapporto di Prova No. 050583 patently
performed by Laboratorio Accreditato No. 0331 on intermediate spun fiber ( not
fully and finally manufactured as yarn ) composed of 18.6 micron wool and 15.5
micron cashmere — representing the fiber analysis to be, and knowing Mr. Elalouf
would in turn represent to others for their reliance, an analysis of the fiber content
of the Cashmerinos when, as stated by Mr. Elalouf, the Cashmerino yarns are
spun with Iranian cashmere of a more inferior quality of 18-19 microns, id., at
pg. 9;
e.) on August 23, 2006, providing a second time the undated Rapporto di Prova No. 050583
represented as having been issued by Laboratorio Accreditato No. 0331 — when Pettinata
V.V.G. knew, or should have known Laboratorio Accreditato No. 0331 identifies G.R.
Biochenilab Sa$ si Albano Rosa & C. which was first accredited as lab No. 0331 on May
15, 2001 before the manufacture of the Cashmerino products and which lab repudiates the
Rapporto di Prova No. 050583 as its work product. Compare, Exhibit “ 117 at pg. 6 with
Exhibit “ 12 7.
128. Certainly by July 20, 2006, defendant Jeftrey J. Denecke, Jr., in reckless disregard of the truth,
agreed to join the conspiracy alleged in q 60 by:
a. ) on July 20, 2006, causing to be placed in the US Mail correspondence of Sion Elalouf

and attached reports of four fiber analyses crafted to squelch questioning of the fiber

Page 54 of 60



Cadeaq 8-03-00g¥12REAB DBegHBaNL3-1 FikikoYOR/8B0P#g8)E%6fdilb1

content of the Debbie Bliss Cashmerinos; see, Exhibit “ 14 ™;

b.) also on July 20, 2006 using interstate wires to transmit the same correspondence to retail
yarn shops and to publish the same at Knitter’s Review, see, id.;

c.) preparing a form letter dated September 7, 2006 and thereafter transmitted to retail yarn
shops representing, inter alia, “ it is not possible for the spinning mill to forget to put the
cashmere in the blend’, “it is impossible to forget to include a specific fiber” and “the
Debbie Bliss Cashmerino is everything it is meant to be. It is the same product our
customers have enjoyed for the past five or six years.” See, Exhibit “ 21 ”;

d.) on October 19, 2006, using interstate wires to publish at Knitter’s Review a general letter
-~ ostensibly refuting the necessity of Plaintiff’s consumer recall and claiming the recall to
be a publicity stunt exacting revenge against KFI and its products. See, Exhibit “ 18 ” .

129. On or before September 26, 2006, Mrs. Bliss, in reckless disregard of the truth, agreed to join the
conspiracy alleged in Y 60 by preparing a letter:

a.) stating her satisfaction that testing performed on the Cashmerino products since June 20,
2006 “confirms the presence of cashmere in the yarn” - while Mrs. Bliss knew or should
have known that reports of fiber analysis on yarns produced after May 26, 2006 hardly
support the presence of cashmere in yarns produced prior to the dyelot ( batch ) actually
analyzed, see, Exhibit “ 16 ”;

b.) offering her sadness and distress that her own integrity in meeting her responsibility to
“maintain the very highest standards and ensure the quality of the products” branded with
her name would be questioned - while Mrs. Bliss knew or should have known her acts
since 1999 to maintain standards and assure the quality were insufficient or irrelevant to
specifying the fiber content and the labeling of those same yarn products. /d.

130. Beginning in July, 2006 and extending for months thereafter, at dates and times more particularly
known to Defendant alone, Jay Opperman agreed to join the scheme alleged in 99 36 and 60 by :

a.) as a director of Designer Yarns, authorizing or acquiescing in the issuance of the fiber
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analyses identified in 19 65-66 — which actions Mr. Opperman knew or should have
known were contrary to the UK TRADE REGULATION ACT of 1968,

b.) as a KFI sales representative, causing to be distributed, for the recipient’s reliance, copies
of the reports identified in 4§ 65-66 to multiple individual retail yarn shops, including
shops located in Rochester and Valley Stream, NY;

c.) representing to yarn shops located in Rochester and Valley Stream, NY that Plaintiff’s
recall of the Cashmerino products was wholly unsubstantiated as indicated by the absence
of any lawsuit filed against KFL

131. Certainly through November, 2005, Diane Elalouf, as the sole person working at KFI ( other than
her husband Sion ) with access to the manufacturer’s stated fiber content of the Cashmerino yarns subject
to the scheme alleged in 19 36 and 60, participated in and facilitated the success enjoyed by that scheme in
keeping secret and preventing regular KFI employees from detecting the Cashmerino products at issue
were spun of a 0% [ zero percentage ] of cashmere as disclosed to KFI by the manufacturer or seller of
such yarns.

132. Plaintiff believes and avers the corporate defendants Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Filatura Pettinata
V.V.G. and the individual defendants Diane Elalouf, Debbie Bliss, Jay Opperman and Jeffrey J. Denecke,
Jr. conspired with Mr. Elalouf in the scheme alleged in § 36 and the attempted cover-up, as alleged in q 60
of the absence of cashmere in the Cashmerino yarns.

133. Plaintiff believes and avers the corporate defendants Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Filatura Pettinata
V.V.G. and the individual defendants Diane Elalouf, Debbie Bliss, Jay Opperman and Jeffrey J. Denecke,
Jr. participated in the attempt to cover-up, as alleged in Y 60, of the absence of cashmere in the
Cashmerino yarns.

134. Plaintiff believes and avers the corporate defendants Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Filatura Pettinata
V.V.G. and the individual defendants Diane Elalouf, Debbie Bliss, Jay Opperman and Jeffrey J. Denecke,
Jr. benefitted from the conspiracy alleged in § 36 and its continuation as alleged in § 60.

135. By reference to § 106 which is incorporated herein as if fully set forth and at length below,
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Plaintiff has been harmed in its business or property by reason of the participation or facilitation of
Defendants Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. and the individual defendants Diane
Elalouf, Debbie Bliss, Jay Opperman and Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr. in a conspiracy with Mr. Elalouf to
conduct Knitting Fever, Inc. as a racketeering enterprise and whereby Mr. Elalouf effected the scheme
described in 9 36 and its cover-up as alleged in § 60.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against and the award of damages jointly and severally against
corporate Defendants Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. and the individual Defendants
Diane Elalouf, Debbie Bliss, Jay Opperman and Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964,
including recovery, in threefold, of the damages sustained and costs of suit including attorney’s fees
resulting from these Defendants having conspired with Defendant Sion Elalouf and having participated in
or facilitated Mr. Elalouf in his operation or management of Knitting Fever, Inc. as a racketeering
enterprise much to Plaintiff’s detriment and further prays the Court, in its discretion, decree such other
remedies as may be deemed appropriate and just including but not limited to prohibiting the Defendants
jointly and severally from future participation in the importation, promotion, wholesale distribution and
sale of handknitting yarns.

COUNT SIX :

Perfidious Trade Practices ( Deceit ) Under the Common Law of Unfair Competition
( The Knit With vs. Knitting Fever, Inc. and Sion and Diane Elalouf )

136. Plaintiff incorporates herein 49 1 through 4, 7, 8, 12 through 82 as if the same were set forth fully
and at length below.

137. The wholesale sale of mislabeled products, purchased by a commercial buyer for resale to
consumers, is the type of perfidious dealing which the law of deceit, a form of action for unfair
competition, is intended to correct.

138. As a matter of law, the sale of mis-labeled wool products is a deceptive and unfair trade practice.
See, United States v. Woody Fashions, Inc., 190 F. Supp. 709 ( S.D. NY, 1961).

139. Mislabeling handknitting wool products or yarn, intended for resale to consumers is a deceptive
and unfair trade practice as established by Congress and so declared by the WOOL PRODUCTS LABELING
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ACT 0of 1939, codified at 15 U.S.C. § 68a.
140. Moreover, the TRADEMARK ACT, at § 45, defines the false advertising of goods, actionable
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 43(a)(1)(B), to be a deceptive practice and a form of unfair competition.
141. By reference to § 106 which is incorporated herein as if fully set forth and at length below, the
Defendants’ deceitful acts have resulted in harms to and the injury of Plaintiff’s business for which the
common law action of perfidious dealing provides a remedy.
142. Defendants introduction into the commerce of the United States of at least three, if not more,
falsely advertised and mis-labeled wool products as prohibited by the trade regulation laws of the United
States is an especially insidious form of perfidious dealing which demonstrates such wanton, reckless or
willful disregard of the rights of others, including Plaintiff, as to entitle Plaintiff to the award of punitive
damages.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants Sion and Diane Elalouf, jointly and
severally and the award of compensatory and punitive damages for Defendants having engaged in
perfidious dealing much to the detriment of Plaintiff and resulting in injury to Plaintiff’s commercial
interests.

COUNT SEVEN :

Motion to Pierce the Corporate Veil of the Elalouf Controlled Entities
( The Knit With vs. Knitting Fever, Inc. and Sion and Diane Elalouf)

143. Plaintiff incorporates herein 19 1-4,99 7, 8, and 9§ 12-142 as if the same were set forth fully and at
length below.
144. Piercing the veil between a corporation and its underlying shareholder(s) is an equitable tool
appropriately utilized to prevent fraud, illegality or injustice, or when recognition of the corporate entity
would defeat public policy or shield a bad actor from liability.
145. Sion and Diane Elalouf are the sole or controlling shareholders of a number of corporate entities,
including but not limited, to:

a.) Knitting Fever, Inc.;

b.) K.F.L International;

Page 58 of 60



Case 3826860864 R$NBDomsumertatl Fiied92530 PRggsSSdH661

c. ) KFI, Inc.;

d.) Euro Yarns, Inc.;

e. ) SE Properties, LLC;

f.) Lease Property Corp.
146.  Upon information and or belief, the various corporations identified in 9 145 and possibly other
corporate entities, are close corporations by which Sion Elalouf publicly conducts business by means of
both legitimate and illegitimate practices including but not limited to racketeering, perfidious dealing
and the explicitly falsely advertising goods sold in interstate commerce.
147.  Upon information and or belief, the various corporations identified in 9 145 and possibly other
corporate entities, were formed for the apparent, if not express, purpose of sequestering profits illicitly
gained by Knitting Fever, Inc. for its sole or controlling shareholders Sion and Diane Elalouf through both
legitimate and illegitimate practices including but not limited to racketeering, perfidious dealing and the
explicitly false advertising of goods sold in interstate commerce.
148.  Upon information and or belief, the various corporations identified in 4 145 and possibly ?ther
corporate entities, hold title to considerable assets realized from profits illicitly gained by Knitting Fever,
Inc. having engaged in racketeering, perfidious dealing and the explicitly false advertising of goods sold in
interstate commerce.
149.  Upon information and or belief, the various corporations identified in 4 145 and possibly other
corporate entities, are wholly owned by Sion Elalouf alone or Sion and Diane Elalouf together or are
under his domination and control and are but mere alter egos of the same Sion Elalouf and are
consequently believed to be sham corporations.
150. Upon information and belief, the various corporations identified in 4 145 and possibly other
corporate entities, exist to insulate profits gained by Sion Elalouf should his perfidious dealing, deceptive
trade practices, racketeering acts and his explicitly false advertising of goods sold in interstate commerce
became publicly known and acted upon.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests this honorable court to pierce the corporate veil separating Knitting Fever,
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Inc., K.F.I International, Euro Yarns, Inc., SE Properties, LLC and Lease Property Corp., and possibly
other corporate entities, from its sole or controlling shareholder Sion Elalouf, and/or the same be held
jointly and severally liable for all damages suffered by Plaintiff and which may be awarded in a judgment

in Plaintiff’s favor.

Jury Demand

151.  Plaintiff respectfully demands a jury trial on all issues triable to a jury.

LAW OFFICE OF JAMES FRANCIS CASALE

By:
James F. Casale, Esquire

PA Identification No. : 83373

8226 Germantown Avenue

CHESTNUT HILL, PA 19118-3402
JECasaleEsg(@msn.com

215-247-4726

L Attorney for Plaintiff,The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership

Dated: 2 September, 2008

002-108.09 [Orat1 28 |
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,
Designer Yarns, Ltd., a corporation of England,
Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. Di Stefano Vaccari & C.
(S.A.S.), a company of Italy,
and
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York,
Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr., of New York,
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,
Debbie Bliss, of England,
Defendants.

Civil Action

No. 02: 08 - CV - 04221

Lead Case

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

Eisaku Noro & Co., Ltd., a corporation of Japan,

Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,
and

Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York,

Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,

Defendants

ORDER

AND NOW, this th day of

Civil Action

No. 02: 08 - CV -04775

Consolidated Case

, 2010, upon consideration of Plaintiff’s

Motion to Disqualify Joshua R. Slavitt, Esq. and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton as counsel for

Defendants Knitting Fever, Inc., Sion and Diane Elalouf, Jeffrey Denecke, Jr., Jay Opperman,

Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. di Stefano Vaccari (S.A.S.), Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Debbie Bliss and
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any response in opposition thereto, it is hereby ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion is GRANTED.,

Itis FURTHER ORDERED:

L. Joshua Slavitt, Esquire and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton are hereby
DISQUALIFIED from representing any Defendant in this matter;

2. All proceedings are STAYED for thirty ( 30 ) days from the entry of this Order;

3. Within thirty (30 ) days from the entry of this Order, Defendants’ substitute counsel

SHALL ENTER APPEARANCES and any requested extensions may be considered

only upon a written request with good cause shown and attested to;

4. Disqualified counsel shall forward to substitute counsel a client file consisting only
of matters of record and correspondence to the court;

5. No work product of any Pepper Hamilton attorney shall be made available to any

substitute counsel for any Defendant without express approval of this court.

BY THE COURT:

Hon. Ronald L. Buckwalter, SJ.

Page 2 of 2
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff,
Vs.
Civil Action
Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,
Designer Yarns, Ltd., a corporation of England, :
Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. Di Stefano Vaccari & C. : No. 02: 08 - CV - 04221
(S.A.S.), a company of Italy, :
and :
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York, : Lead Case
Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr., of New York, :
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,
Debbie Bliss, of England, : ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED
Defendants.
The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,
Plaintiff, . Civil Action
vs.
Eisaku Noro & Co., Ltd., a corporation of Japan, : No. 02: 08 - CV -04775
Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation, :
and
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York, :
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey, : Consolidated Case

Defendants

MOTION FOR DISQUALIFICATION
OF JOSHUA R. SLAVITT AND THE LAW FIRM OF PEPPER HAMILTON

Plaintiff, The Knit With, motions pursuant to LocaL C1viL RULE 83.6 IV(B) for the Court
to disqualify Joshua R. Slavitt, Esquire and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton from representing -

Defendants Knitting Fever, Inc., Sion and Diane Elalouf, Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr., Jay Opperman,

Page 1 of 2
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Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. di Stefano Vaccari (S.A.S.), Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Debbie Bliss and
in support thereof relies upon the the facts and exhibits set forth in the accompanying brief and
arguments and authorities contained therein in addition to such facts and arguments as may be
presented at oral argument.

Wherefore, The Knit With respectfully requests this Honorable Court completely disqualify
Joshua R. Slavitt, Esquire and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton from any further participation in this

matter.

Respectfully submitted,

Law OFFICE OF Jases F, CAsaLE

o N
v AN

e ra O —

By M

Jamgs ¥ Casale, Esquire

P& Auorney 1D 83373

8226 Germantown Avenug

CHESTNUT HILL, PA 19118-3402

215247 . 4726

HCasaleBsgiimen com

DATED: © July 2010 Counsel for Plainaft, The Kait With
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff,
Vs,
Civil Action
Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,
Designer Yarns, Ltd., a corporation of England, :
Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. Di Stefano Vaccari & C. . No. 02: 08 - CV - 04221
(S.A.S.), a company of Italy, :
and .
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York, : Lead Case
Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr., of New York, :
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,
Debbie Bliss, of England,
Defendants.

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff, . Civil Action
VS. :

Eisaku Noro & Co., Ltd., a corporation of Japan, : No. 02: 08 - CV -04775
Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation, :
and
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York, :
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey, : Consolidated Case

Defendants

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JOSHUA R.SLAVITT
AND THE LAW FIRM OF PEPPER HAMILTON

Pursuant to LocAL RULE 83.6 IV(B), Plaintiff, The Knit With, ( Aereinafier, “TKW” ),
motions for the complete disqualification of Joshua R. Slavitt and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton.

Defense counsel’s concurrent representation of:

Page 1 of 14



Cdsase P08yayeRé2nilB Document 184 Filedti O70SMQ Page & of 1D

m the US Defendants — Knitting Fever, Inc., ( hereinafter, “KFI”), Sion and Diane Elalouf,
Jay Opperman and Jeffrey Denecke and
] the European Defendants — Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. di Stefano Vaccari & C. (S.A.S.),
( hereinafter, “VVG ), Designer Yarns, Ltd. and Debbie Jane Bliss
presents an apparent conflict of interest in violation of the RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT.
I. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
The simultaneous representation of the US and the European Defendants by Joshua Slavitt
and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton violates RULE 1.7 of the RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT.
A significant risk exists that the separate interests of both the US and the European Defendants will
be materially limited by Mr. Slavitt’s conflicted responsibilities to each Defendant.
II.  FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The lead Complaint ' in this consolidated action ? results from the 2006 discovery of the

As filed September 2, 2008, the lead Complaint, states six causes of action. Following the Court’s

ruling on two RuLE 12 motions brought by the US Defendants, TKW Is proceeding for:

L breach of express warranty against KFl, Sion Elalouf and Jay Opperman - Count One;

L] breach of implied warranty of merchantability against the same Defendants and VVG - Count Two;
L the conduct by Sion Elalouf of KFi as a racketeering and/or corrupt enterprise - Count Four;

L] participation by VVG, Designer Yarns, Ltd., Diane Elalouf, Jay Opperman, Jeffrey Denecke and

Debbie Jane Bliss in a conspiracy in furtherance of racketeering - Count Five.

Count Five is derivative to the substantive Count Four which in turn requires proof of continuity of
racketeering acts such as the scheme to defraud. Pending before the Court is TKW’s motion for partial
summary judgment on Counts One, Two and Four. See, Document 152.

2

On October 6, 2008, TKW filed a parallel action, docketed at 08-04775, arising from the mis-labeling
of another three yarns imported by KFl under the Noro brand name. As presently postured, the parallel action
asserts breach of warranty claims against, inter alia, KFI and Messrs. Elalouf and Opperman for which Joshua
Slavitt appears a counsel of record. By Order of December 23, 2008, TKW’s two actions are consolidated

for purposes of discovery and trial. See, Document 14.

Page 2 of 14
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absence of cashmere in three handknitting yarns: KFI Cashmereno DK, Debbie Bliss Cashmerino
Aran and Cashmerino Baby.”® See, Complaint ( Docket 08-4221, Document 1 ). Each yarn is:

= labeled as spun with a 12% cashmere content — see, id. at 99 37, 38 and 41;

] exclusively imported by KFI —  see, id. at 9 5 and 37.

The Debbie Bliss Cashmerinos are manufactured by VVG. See, VVG Certification dated
September 1, 2006, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 1. Designer Yarns, Ltd.
sources the manufacture of and exports branded handknitting yarns, including Debbie Bliss products,
to exclusive distributors for retail sale to consumers. See, Declaration of John A. Cashell dated April
5, 2005 a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 2.

On January 6, 2009, the US Defendants answered the Complaint asserting TKW’s failure
to state claims against the Answering Defendants. See, Document 15 at § 152. Shortly thereafter,
Mr. Slavitt announced the US Defendants’ defense theory: “KFI is a victim too of” the European
Defendants’ improper labeling of the Cashmerinos. See, Correspondence to Joshua R. Slavitt dated
February 21, 2009, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 3. Months later, Mr.
Slavitt characterized the European Defendants’ mis-labeling of the Cashmerinos as ‘unscrupulous’.

See, Declaration of Counsel at § 7, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 4. *

Cashmerino is a yarn type purported to be a blend of merino wool, microfiber (acrylic ) and cashmere.
Yarns of this identical fiber content are collectively referred to as Cashmerinos.
4

The US Defendants’ have never disavowed Mr. Slavitt’s stated defense theory. Id., at § 8. To the
contrary, on October 28, 2009, Mr. Slavitt endorsed the essential accuracy of his February 16 statements:

the Soviet Union’s valiant (and ultimately successful) defense of their homeland against
unprovoked aggression bears some faint resemblance to the US Defendants’ defense of the present
actlons ... and most of the remaining claims will soon be challenged by way of summary judgment.

See, Correspondence of Joshua Slavitt dated October 28, 2009 at pg 3, a true and correct copy of which is

attached as Exhibit 5 .
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Discovery produced correspondence confirming VVG’s participation in the conspiracy to
cover-up the absence of cashmere in the Cashmerinos. See, VVG Correspondence dated June 20,
2006, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 6 . This evidence conflicts with the US
Defendants Answer. See, Document 15 at Y 62. Shortly thereafter, VVG proposed that questions
about the Cashmerinos’ cashmere content could be resolved by, inter alia, discontinuing or altering
the product. See, Correspondence of VVG dated July 10, 2006, a true and correct copy of which is
attached as Exhibit 7.

On May 5, 2010, TKW requested entry of default against VVG. See, Document 105.

Shortly thereafter, TKW discovered evidence of the continued mis-labeling of Cashmerinos
manufactured in 2007. See, Report of K. D. Langley Fiber Services dated May 10, 2010, a true and
correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 8. > On May 10, TKW requested entry of default
against Debbie Bliss and Designer Yarns, Ltd. See, Documents 107 and 108.

On May 12, Mr. Slavitt motioned for dismissal of VVG claiming TK W’s ineffective service
of process. ¢ See, Document 113. By May 17, Mr. Slavitt filed separate motions on behalf of
Debbie Bliss and Designer Yarns, Ltd. :

» to set aside the defaults entered against — Documents 118 and 122; and

= challenging service of process — Documents 119 and 120.

Continued investigation indicates Cashmerinos introduced by KFl in 2010 are also mis-labeled. See,
Report of K.D. Langley Fiber Services dated June 30, 2010, a true and correct copy of which is attached as
Exhibit 9; see also, Exhibit 4 at 7 15.
6

Since February, 2009, Mr. Slavitt has sought dismissal of the European Defendants. See, Case Status
Report of KFI Defendants, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 10. At the June 24,2009
RuLE 16 conference, counsel stated he did not represent the European Defendants; the Court declined to

dismiss the European Defendants pursuant to RULE 21. See, Exhibit 4 at 9 6.
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On May 19, Mr. Slavitt’s attention was drawn to the apparent conflict of interest resulting
from his simultaneous representation of both the US and the European Defendants. See,
Correspondence Addressed to Joshua R. Slavitt dated May 19, 2010, a true and correct copy of
which is attached as Exhibit 1 1. At no time since May 19 has Mr. Slavitt addressed his conflicted
simultaneous representatién of both the US and the European Defendants. See, Exhibit 4 at 9 12.

By June 1, TKW opposed the motions of Designer Yarmns and Debbie Bliss to set aside the
defaults entered against them. See, Documents 132 and 133. Supporting TKW’s opposition to set
aside the defaults, TKW pointed to the lack of any showing of good cause by Designer Yarns and
Debbie Bliss for the requested relief; TKW also identified the apparent conflict resulting from
defense counsel’s simultaneous representation of both the US and the European Defendants. See,
id. at fn. 2 and accompanying text. On June 4, defense counsel requested leave to reply to TKW’s
opposition. See, Correspondence of Joahua Slavitt dated June 4, 2010, a true and correct copy of
which is attached as 12. On June 9, the European Defendants replied to TKW’s oppositions but did
not address the identified substantive deficiencies of the defaulted Defendants motions. See,
Documents 140 and 141. The Debbie Bliss and Designer Yamns’ replies were apparently filed
without authorization and contrary to the Court’s Order of March 23, 2010. See, Exhibit 4 at q13.

On June 11, 2010, TKW motioned to strike the reply briefs filed on behalf of Debbie Bliss
and Designer Yarns, Ltd. See, Document 147. Later that same day, defense counsel sought TKW’s
voluntary withdrawal of the motion to strike and represented the Court had verbally approved filing

the reply briefs but failed to inform counsel of its decision. 7 See, Correspondence of Joshua Slavitt

Defense counsel’s misrepresentation is neither the first nor only instance of such unethical conduct.
See, Correspondences of Joshua Slavitt dated February 19 and June 7, 2010, true and correct copies of which

are attached as Exhibit 13; see also, Document 82.
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dated June 11, 2010, a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 14. Neither Debbie
Bliss nor Designer Yarns ever opposed TKW’s motion to strike the reply briefs as filed without
leave. See, Exhibit 4 at 9 13.

Recent correspondence confirms both the US and the European Defendants in this action are
the clients of Pepper Hamilton. See, Correspondence of Joshua Slavitt dated July 2, 2010, a true and

correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 15.
III. LEGAL AUTHORITIES

A, The Discipline of Attorneys Practicing Before This Court.

The Court is authorized to discipline the ethical conduct of attorneys appearing before the
Court. See, In Re Corn Derivatives Antitrust Lit., 748 F.2d 157, 1984 U.S. App. LEXIS 16681 (CA
3, 1984 )( The admission and discipline of attorneys practicing before Federal courts is within court’s
inherent powers. ). In furtherance of its duty to discipline the practice of law, the Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania hasve promulgated Rule IV which provides in pertinent part:

Rule IV — Standards for Professional Conduct

A. For misconduct defined in these Rules, and for good cause shown, and after notice
and opportunity to be heard, any attorney admitted to practice before this court may
be disbarred, suspended from practice before this court, reprimanded or subjected to
such other disciplinary action as the circumstances may warrant.

B. Acts or omissions by an attorney admitted to practice before this court,
individually or in concert with any other person or persons, which violate the Rules
of Professional Conduct adopted by this Court shall constitute misconduct and shall
be grounds for discipline, whether or not the act or omission occurred in the course
of any attorney-client relationship.

The Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by this court are the Rules of
Professional Conduct adopted by the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, as amended
from time to time by that state court . . ..

See, LocAL RULE 83.6.

A motion for disqualification is the appropriate procedure to resolve questions concerning
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the ethical conduct of attorneys. Cf., Pressman-Gutman Co., Inc. v. First Union Nat'l. Bank, 2004
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 23991 ( E.D. PA, 2004 ), aff’d., 459 F.3d 383 ( CA 3, 2006 ). Because
disqualification is a harsh measure and deprives an opposing party of chosen counsel, and may be
motivated by tactical concerns, motions for disqualification are generally not favored. See, Jackson
v. Rohm & Haas Co., 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 65632 ( E.D. PA, 2008 ). However, doubts as to the
existence of a conflict of interest are resolved in favor of disqualification. See, International Bus.
Mach. Corp. v. Levin, 579 F.2d 271,283 (CA 3, 1978)

The Court is equally concerned about the appearance of impropriety as well as an actual
violation of the ethical rules. See, Arguev. David Davis Enter., Inc.,2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630
( E.D. PA, 2004 )( It is essential that a court avoid the appearance as well as the actuality of
professional impropriety. ) citing, Akerly v. Red Barn Sys., Inc., 551 F.2d 539, 544 (CA 3, 1977).

B. Simultaneous Representation of Multiple Defendants Implicates Rule 1.7.

The simultaneous representation of multiple clients is governed by RULE 1.7 of the Rules
of Professional Conduct. See, Jackson v. Rohm & Haas Co., 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 65632 ( E.D.
PA, 2008 )( Rule 1.7 governs conflicts of interest that may arise from simultaneous representation
of co-plaintiffs or co-defendants. ). The RULE provides in pertient part:

Rule 1.7. Conflict of Interest: Current Clients

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a client if the

representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict of

interest exists if:
(1) the representation of one client will be directly adverse to another client; or
(2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be
materially limited by the lawyer’s responsibilities to another client, a former client
or a third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer.

See, PA. RULE OF PROFESSIONAL CoNDUCT 1.7.

Itis settled law in Pennsylvania that attorneys owe a duty of complete loyalty to their clients.
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See, Maritrans GP Inc. v. Pepper, Hamilton, 529 Pa. 241, 602 A.2d 1277 ( 1992 )( Attomey has a
common law duty of loyalty to client. ). The duty of loyalty underlies RULE 1.7. See, Argue v.
David Davis Enter., Inc., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630 ( E.D. PA, 2004 )( The main purpose of
Rule 1.7 is to encourage attorney loyalty . ). See also, Tran v. Meyers, 1995 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 14597
( E.D. PA, 1995 )( Disciplinary rule 1.7 is designed to ensure a lawyer’s loyalty to a client,
preserving the confidence of a client in his attorney and generally promoting public confidence in
the profession.). Where an impermissible conflict of interest arises in the course of a client’s
representation, the lawyer should withdraw from the representation. See, Pressman-Gutman Co.,
Inc. v. First Union Nat'l. Bank, 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 23991 ( E.D. PA, 2004 ), aff"d., 459 F.3d
383 (CA 3,2006).

Courts interpret RULE 1.7 to prohibit the simultaneous representation of multiple clients by
a single attorney when the multiple representations would seriously or materially limit the attorney’s
ability to represwnt the separate interests any single client. See, Lease v. Rubacky, 987 F. Supp.
406, 1997 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20809 ( E.D. PA, 1997 )( Rule 1.7 provides that an attorney may not
represent two clients when representation of one would be ‘directly adverse’ to or would ‘materially
limit’ representation of the other; when the potential claims are such that their existence affects the
adequacy of representation, then the interests are too adverse to allow joint representation. ).

Multiple clients represented by a single attorney may waive a resulting conflict of interest.
See, RPC 1.7 (b). The conflicted attorney must present evidence of a voluntary and informed waiver
of the conflict by the clients affected. See, International Longshoremen's Assoc., Local Union 1332
v. International Longshoremen's Assoc., 909 F. Supp. 287, 1995 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 18802 (E.D. PA,

1995 )( the ‘consent’ requirement calls for more than mere ‘awareness’ of a possible conflict of
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interest. ). Whether a waiver is legally effective is objectively determined. See, Davis v. Kraft
Foods N. Am., 2006 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 3512 ( E.D. PA, 2006 )( When a disinterested lawyer would
conclude that the client should not agree to the representation under the circumstances, the lawyer
involved cannot properly ask for such agreement or provide representation on the basis of the client’s
consent.).

Moreover, evidence of waiver, alone, is not dispositive whether a conflict results from
multiple representations. See, U.S. v. Moscony, 927 F.2d 742 ( CA 3, 1991)( A court may enforce
the ethical rules governing the legal profession with respect to conflict-free representation regardless
of any purported waiver. ); see also, Hesling v. The Avon Grove School Dist., 2007 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 24209 ( E.D. PA 2007 )( A conflict may be so severe as to preclude continued joint
representation, regardless of any waiver.). Similarly, serious conflicts implicating the integrity of
either the judicial process or an individual attorney may not be waived. See, Argue v. David Davis
Enter., Inc., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630 ( E.D. PA, 2004 )( Conflicts which threaten the
confidence and respect of the community towards the bench and bar may not be waived even where
the parties have consented to multiple representation. ).

Courts test the effectiveness of a waiver by balancing the client’s interests in attorney loyalty
and retaining chosen counsel against the risk of prejudice to the opposing party and the court’s
interest in protecting the integrity of the proceedings and maintaining public confidence in the
judicial system. Id. ( In determining if disqualification is appropriate, the Court must balance the
interests to the parties affected ). See also, Commonwealth Ins. v. Graphix Hot Line, 808 F.Supp.
1200, 1203 (E.D. PA, 1992).

In the absence of evidence of an effective waiver, the conflict arising from the simultaneous
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representation of multiple clients in the same — or even unrelated — matter is impermissible. See,
Argue v. David Davis Enter., Inc., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630 ( E.D. PA, 2004 )( In the absence
of evidence that after consultation, multiple clients, with different interests but represented by the
same law firm even in unrelated matters, consented to the concurrent representations, the conflict
is impermissible under Rule 1.7(a).

C. An Attorney’s Conflict Is Imputed to Attorney’s Law Firm.

Impermissible conflicts of interest arising under RULE 1.7 preclude the continued
involvement of any attorney associated with the conflicted attorney. See, RPC 1.10 which provides
in pertinent part:

Rule 1.10. Imputation of Conflicts of Interest: General Rule\

(a) While lawyers are associated in a firm, none of them shall knowingly represent

a client when any one of them practicing alone would be prohibited from doing so
byRule 1.7 . ..

See, RPC 1.10

When enforcing RULE 1.7, courts are not chary to disqualify an entire law firm from the
continued representation of even unrelated parties where an impermissible conflict exists. Cf., Argue
v. David Davis Enters., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630 ( E.D. PA, 2004 )( Disqualification is

appropriate remedy to cure an impermissible conflict of interest under Rule 1.7.).

IV. LEGAL ARGUMENT
The Court should disqualify Joshua Slavitt from his continued appearance in this matter.
Mr. Slavitt’s simultaneous representation by of both the US and the European Defendants
presents an impermissible conflict of interest which is incurable by any waiver by his clients. The

concurrent representation of both the US and the European Defendants raises serious — and
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unanswered — questions whether Mr. Slavitt’s professional responsibilities to each Defendant is
materially limited by his joint representation of the remaining defendants. Mr. Slavitt has breached
his ethical duties by undertaking the simultaneous representation of the European Defendants .

Mr. Slavitt has announced the US Defendants’ perceive the European Defendants to be
squarely and solely responsible for the absence of cashmere in the Cashmerinos: “KFl is a victim
too” of the ‘unscrupulous’ acts of its suppliers Designer Yarns, Debbie Bliss and VVG. See, Exhibit
3. In this vein, the US Defendants assert the Complaint fails to state claims against the Answering
Defendants — minimally implying the Complaint may state a claim against the non-answering
defendants. * See, Document 15 at 9 152.

Defense counsel has never repudiated nor retracted his announcement of the US Defendants’
defense strategy. Rather, he has simply ignored legitimate questions whether his representation of
the European Defendants conflicts with his continued appearance on behalf of the US Defendants.
Legitimate questions directed to defense counsel’s conflict of interest simply do not go away merely
because defense counsel elects to ignore the question. °

The existence of a conflict of interest in defense counsel simultaneous representation of both

the US and the European Defendants is not dependent upon an actual conflict. '° Rather, RULE 1.7

In an apparent tactical decision, Mr. Slavitt motioned to set aside the defaults entered against both
Designer Yarns and Debbie Bliss without filing any Answer to the Complaint and thus failed to show ‘good
cause’ for the requested relief.

9

Defense counsel has similarly ignored whether the admission of Jay Opperman that he has no role
in his own defense of this claim requires Mr. Slavitt’s withdrawal.
10

In an apparent tactical decision, KFl has not crossclaimed against its European suppliers - as would
be expected were KFI engaged in arms-length transactions with its suppliers in the importation of the mis-

labeled Cashmerinos.
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is implicated when counsel’s responsibilities to any single defendant are ‘materially limited ’ by the
simultaneous representation of co-defendants. See, Lease v. Rubacky, 987 F. Supp. 406, 1997 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 20809 ( E.D. PA, 1997).

Mr. Slavitt’s representation of both the US and European Defendants is materially limited
by the simultaneous representation of both groups of Defendants. For example, Mr. Slavitt’s
representation of the European Defendants requires KFI to forego its announced defense theory that
“KFl1is a victim too” of its “‘unscrupulous’ European suppliers. Similarly, VVG is precluded from
asserting the Cashmerinos were manufactured according to the specifications of either Designer
Yarns and/or KFI and Mr. Elalouf.

Moreover, defense counsel has not demonstrated each of his clients has waived the apparent
conflict — or is even aware of a material limitation in his representation of each client. Defense
counsel has elected to disregard TKW’s legitimate questions seeking evidence of his clients’ waiver
— allowing the inference that no waiver exists. As has been demonstrated, the concurrent
representation of both the US and the European Defendants directly and materially limits counsel’s
simultaneous representation of each defendant. The material limitation imposed upon defense
counsel resulting from his simultaneous representation of both the US and the European Defendants
threatens to impede the fair, objective and just determination whether KFI or the European
Defendants are responsible for the absence of the requisite amount of cashmere in the Cashmerinos.
See, Hesling v. The Avon Grove School Dist., 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 24209 ( E.D. PA 2007 )( A
conflict of interest may be so severe as to impede the fair operation of the courts and preclude
continued joint representation, regardless of any waiver.).

Additionally, even were defense counsel to produce evidence of each Defendants’ informed

Page 12 of 14



CaSest 08+N08422RB Douumenit 252  Filked 070810 Page 18 of 29

consent and waiver, such evidence of waiver is not, alone, dispositive whether the waivers are
effective. See, Davis v. Kraft Foods N. Am., 2006 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 3512 ( E.D. PA, 2006 ); see
also, U.S. v. Moscony, 927 F.2d 742, 749 ( CA 3, 1991 ). Under the circumstances presented —
where defense counsel has announced KFI's intent to lay blame for the mis-labeling of the
Cashmerinos at the feet of the European Defendants, a disinterested attorney could hardly counsel
the European Defendants to accept simulataneous representation by counsel for KFL

Furthermore, the continued simultaneous representation of both the US and the European
Defendants seriously implicates the integrity of the impartial adjudication of TKW’s claim. Defense
counsel has already involved the Court in his ruse to effect TKW’s voluntary withdrawal of the
motion to strike the unauthorized reply briefs filed on behalf of Designer Yarns and Debbie Bliss.
See, Exhibit 14.  Similarly, defense counsel has repeatedly misrepresented to the Court the
provisions of Local Rule 7.1.  See, Exhibit 13. Alternatively, defense counsel has produced
documents authored by VVG which are counter to the sworn statements of the US Defendants.
Compare, Exhibit 6 and 4 62 of the US Defendants’ Answer. Defense counsel’s continued and
conflicted representation threatens the respect due the Court and the integrity of its decisions. See,
Argue v. David Davis Enter., Inc., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630 ( E.D. PA, 2004 ).

When objectively assessed, defense counsel should be disqualified from the continued
appearance in this matter. As demonstrated by comparison of Exhibit 6 and 4 62 of the US
Defendants’ Answer, Mr. Slavitt asserts shifting positions based upon the exigencies of the moment.
At a minimum, such inconsistent statements threaten the confidence and respect of the community
towards the bench and bar. See, Argue v. David Davis Enter., Inc., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22630

( E.D. PA, 2004 ). Moreover, TKW is prejudiced by the inability to rely upon even the sworn
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statements of the Defendants under counsel’s representation. /d. Finally, defense counsel’s conduct
in both disregarding his ethical duties and in ignoring legitimate inquiry concerning those duties
requires his disqualification.

Pursuant to RULE 1.10, Pepper Hamilton should be disqualified as well. Just days ago, Mr.
Slavitt acknoweldged that both the US and the European Defendants are clients of Pepper Hamilton.
See, Exhibit 15 . The Court may properly impute the unethical conduct of Mr. Slavitt to the Pepper

Hamilton firm. See, Argue, supra.

V. CONCLUSION
The concurrent representation by Mr. Slavitt and firm of Pepper Hamilton presents an
apparent conflict of interest which materially limits the representation of each Defendant.
Wherefore, for all the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court
to disqualify Joshua Slavitt and the law firm of Pepper Hamilton from any continued participation

in this matter.

Respectiully submitted,

Law OQFFice oF Jases F.Casale

Pt -~ - H
“}é ! Pt

Jamgs B Casale, Esquire

PA Attorney 1D 83373

8226 Germantown Avenue
CHESTNUT HILL, PA 19118-3402
205247 - 47206
JFCasaleEsq@msn com

By:

Dateo: 9 July, 2010 Counsel for Plaintiff, The Knit With
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,

Designer Yarns, Ltd., a corporation of England,

Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. Di Stefano Vaccari & C.

(8.A.8.), a company of Italy,
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York,

Civil Action

No. 02: 08 - CV - 04221

Jeffrey J. Denecke, Jr., of New York, Lead Case
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,
Debbie Bliss, of England,
Defendants.
The Knit With, a Pennsylvania Partnership,
Plaintiff, Civil Action

Vvs.
Eisaku Noro & Co., Ltd., a corporation of Japan,
Knitting Fever, Inc., a New York corporation,
Sion Elalouf and Diane Elalouf, of New York,
Jay Opperman, of New Jersey,
Defendants

No. 02: 08 - CV 04775

Consolidated Case

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, James F. Casale, Esquire, attorney for Plaintiff, hereby certify that, on the date set forth below, I
caused to be served Plaintiff’s Motion to Disqualify Joshua R. Slavitt, Esq. and the law firm of
Pepper Hamilton to counsel for Defendants Knitting Fever, Inc., Sion Elalouf, Diane Elalouf, Jeffrey
Denecke, Jr., Jay Opperman, Filatura Pettinata V.V.G. di Stefano Vaccari (S.A.S.), Designer Yarns,
Ltd. and Debbie Bliss by electronic filing with the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania.

DaTeb: (9 July. 2010

Respectiutly submitted,

LAW OFFICE OF JaMmes FoCasare
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Jamgs ¥ Casale, Esquire

PA Adomey 1D 83373

8226 Germantown Avenue
CHESTNUT HILL, PA 191183402
215 - 247 - 4726
Casalebsgifman com
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Guite, Robert J.

From: Slavitt, Joshua R. [slavittji@peppertaw.com]

Sent: Friday, July 02, 2010 6:17 AM

To: Guite, Robert J.

Cc: O'Rourke, Angela N.; Busk, Heather D.

Subject: Cascade Yarns v. Knitting Fever, Inc. et al.; W.D. Wash. Civil Action No. 2:10-cv-00861-RSM

Dear Mr. Guite,
Pepper Hamilton represents the defendants in the above-referenced matter.

From the docket entries, it would appear that affidavits of service have been filed stating that Knitting Fever, Inc.,
Sion Elalouf, and Debbie Bliss were served on June 12, 2010, and that Diane Elalouf and Jay Opperman were
served on June 22, 2010. No affidavits of service have yet been filed with respect to Filatura Pettinata, Designer
Yarns, Ltd., or David Watt, but it is our understanding that service has been at least attempted if not effected upon
Designer Yarns, Ltd. and David Watt, but not Filatura Pettinata.

Measuring from June 12, 2010, the time for KFI, Mr. Elalouf, and Ms. Bliss to respond would be July 6, 2010 (the
first non-weekend/holiday day after 21 days), and July 16, 2010, for Ms. Elalouf and Mr. Opperman. In order to
coordinate our responses on behalf of all of the defendants upon whom service has been at least attempted if not
effected, and to avoid disagreements about the sufficiency of service with regard to Designer Yarns, Ltd. and
David Watt upon whom, as we understand, service of only the original complaint has been attempted, we would
propose extending the time for all defendants (other than Filatura Pettinata) to answer, move, or otherwise plead
to the amended complaint by 30 days from the date on which KFI, Mr. Elalouf, and Ms. Bliss were served,
namely, to August 5, 2010. With regard to Filatura Pettinata, please advise whether you have attempted to effect
service or if you intend only to name but not serve them as we see no need to respond on their behalf to a
complaint you do not intend to serve.

Please let me know whether this proposal is acceptable. If so, we will prepare a stipulation for submission to the
Court.

Regards,

Joshua R. Slavitt
Attorney at Law

Pepper Hamilton LLP
3000 Two Logan Square
Philadeiphia, PA 19103
215.981.4680 - Direct
215-880.2569 - Mobile
216.981.4750 - Fax
slavittj@pepperlaw.com
www.pepperiaw.com
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